
Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
Department: Development Services 

Category: Ordinance 
Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

Department Head: Melanie Ellis 

City Council 
7224 GA Highway 21 

Port Wentworth, GA  31407 

Submitted 

AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2904) DOC ID: 2904 

Updated: 11/16/2023 9:30 AM by Melanie Ellis Page 1 

Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Steven & 
Janet Hester for PIN # 70978 05016 (440 Meinhard Rd) to 

Rezone from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to C-2 
(Community Business) Zoning District (1st Reading) 

Issue/Item: Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Steven & Janet Hester for 

PIN # 70978 05016 (440 Meinhard Rd) to Rezone from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to 

C-2 (General Commercial) Zoning District (1st Reading).

Background: This parcel is currently being used as a single family home residence. There 

are several buildings on the subject property.  

Facts and Findings: The total amount of property to be rezoned is 12.27 acres. The 

applicant is requesting to rezone the property from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to C-2(General 
Commercial). The applicant submitted a concept of uses such as a Luxury Hotel & Convention Center 
and Institutional Development.  Access will be off of Meinhard Road. According to the 2021 City 

of Port Wentworth Comprehensive Plan this property is under the Suburban Character Area. 

This project is located in City Council District 3. 

Funding: N/A 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on November 13, 

2023 at 3:30 P.M. / UPDATE: The Planning Commission voted unanimously to 

recommend to Deny the application.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

• ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Application (PDF) 

• ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Plat Map & Basic Concept Plan (PDF) 

• Meinhard - Letter of Invite to Neighborhood Rezoning Meeting (PDF) 

• Meinhard Neighborhood Meeting Report, Oct 2 (PDF)

• ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Timeline (DOCX) 











https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 1/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 2/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 3/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 4/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 5/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 6/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 7/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 8/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 9/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537… 10/11



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537… 11/11













PR
OP

OS
ED

 H
ES

TE
R 

FA
RM

S B
LV

D

PROPOSED REZONING OF STEVEN & JANET HESTER
 PROPERTY FROM RURAL AGRICULTURL (R-A) TO C-2

COMMERICIAL ZONING CLASSIFICATION



PR
OP

OS
ED

 H
ES

TE
R 

FA
RM

S B
LV

D

PROPOSED REZONING OF STEVEN & JANET HESTER
 PROPERTY FROM RURAL AGRIGULTURAL (RA) TO C-2

COMMERICIAL ZONING CLASSIFICATION

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH
REGIONAL PARK COMPLEX

& SAVANNAH GHOST PIRATES 
TRAINING FACILITY

INSTITUTIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT 
SITE 3 AC PAD



Steve Hester  
440 Meinhard Road, Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

912.655.2513  
hestersj@gmail.com 

September 19, 2023 

 
 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Please be advised that you are invited to attend a neighborhood meeting on Monday, 
October 2, 2023 regarding an upcoming rezoning request of my property located at 
440 Meinhard Road, Port Wentworth, GA at 7:00 pm 

This meeting is a requirement of the City of Port Wentworth rezoning process and 
must be held in the evening. 

My property is currently zoned RA.  We are requesting a zoning of C-2 so as to be 
more in line with the city's development plans. 

Sincerely yours, 

Steve Hester  



Meinhard/Hester Farms Neighborhood Meeting 
 

Held at:  

7 pm on October 2, 2023 at Hester Farms/440 Meinhard Road Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

 

Invitees: 

Robert Lee Hester 

Virgil Hester 

City of Port Wentworth 

 

Attendees: 

Thomas Barbee 

Rufus Bright 

Mark Stephens 

Artlise Alston-Cone 

Avril Roy-Smith 

Dominique Lavoisier 

Janet Hester, Applicant 

Steven Hester, Applicant 

Hannah Hester, Presenter 

 

Comments: 

Presentation of Basic Concept Plan for C-2 Zoning at site currently known as Hester Farms/440 Meinhard 

Road Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

 

Discussion on the 2020 rezoning of the Hendley Rd 100 acre tract to Industrial where 3 warehouses are 

now in the final stages of construction and it has impacted the Hester Family’s decision to request this 

rezoning with a goal of a sale and relocation. 

 

Barbee asked what timeline this concept plan would be publicly heard as it is currently election season 

and election day is November 7, 2023. Hannah indicated the schedule was Planning Commission on Oct 

9, 1st council reading on Oct 26, and second reading on Nov 30 but notice had just been received the 

Friday prior that the October PC meeting was cancelled due to lack of quorum but the applicants would 

be requesting a special/rescheduled hearing.  

 

Barbee asked if land adjacent to Hester Farms now a part of the under construction city park was 

purchased (December 2022) from other Hester family members and Steve confirmed, yes, the prior 

owners are his first cousins.  

 

Hannah requested comments from attendees noting those as main purpose of meeting and for input on 

what they would like to see on any part of the site not already designated, Avril commented that at least 

4 people there were neighbors of the subject property as well as Lake Shore, Newport and though most 

attendees were current councilman and/or candidates running for council, they should also speak as 

neighbors and residents as it will impact them in those roles as well. She continued that Hester Farms 



being C-2 under the more restrictive new ordinances might balance the C-1 zoned properties along 

Benton Blvd, the new city park in the middle, and it will make a nice balance to be around especially if 

something “good” is developed on Benton. 

 

Mark stated to Avril’s comments, the key is what gets developed on sites. And in response to Hannah’s 

mention that more input from families with small children would be impactful for what to place in any 

revised/future concept plan, Mark commented that businesses and services that reaches people in their 

early/mid-30’s.  

 

Barbee stated that the 28th location in Port Wentworth where someone can buy liquor was about to 

open. It was later clarified that the number included restaurants such as the one mentioned opening on 

Hwy 21 where the Sweet Tea restaurant was previously located. 

 

Mark asked how the traffic created by the proposed development would be handled on Meinhard and 

Monteith Roads. Hannah answered stating it could be a joint effort by whomever develops Hester Farms 

and the acreage across Meinhard but a possible solution would be a traffic circle at the base of the 

Meinhard overpass, the proposed Hester Farms Boulevard on the site plan. Hannah suggested good 

ingress/egress from the park, creating connections between the Hester Farms site and the park and its 

roads as well as ingress/egress from the site as directly to Meinhard but that would need to be planned 

for the site plan in conjunction with the city staff. Hester Farms Boulevard could also connect to the park 

and it’s roads at the amphitheater parking lot site.  

Hannah suggested the faster the Hester Farms site can get to development phase, the more likely the 

city can work with the developer to upgrade the roads and infrastructure together at one time. 

Mark agreed stating “upgrade at once” and plan accordingly to incorporate the Hester Farms 

development in with the city’s park development.  

 

Mark suggested from the current site plan, it might be better for the hotel to be in the back of the site 

(further off the proposed Blvd) and medical sites closer.  

Hannah agreed and confirmed the hotel could move back and keep any uses that need road frontage 

such as a bank, restaurant or mixed-use would be best there, facing the park. Medical could also be 

further off the road frontage as it is a destination people go to. 

 

Avril commented that the proposed uses, and the additional ones suggested, are all low traffic 

developments and traffic shouldn’t be impacted much, if at all. Janet added even less impact with the 

city’s new road through the park connecting Meinhard to Hwy 30. 

Avril stated her home of everyone there was likely most impacted and truck traffic is already an issue 

but increased patrols could result in more ticketing. Janet concurred and reiterated that the additional 

city park road plus any potential others could help alleviate the growing traffic concerns in general since 

given Avril’s opinion that any Hester Farms proposed development would not have much additional 

traffic impact.  

 

 

 

 



230250 ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 

1 
 11/16/2023 9:34 AM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 230250 

Project Name: ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 

Applicant: Steven & Janet Hester 

Owner: Steven & Janet Hester 

Planning Commission Date: 

Council Date:  

 

• 07.17.2023 – Application received incomplete (SC) 

• 07/20/2023 – Meeting with Att. Scott to discuss application 

• 07/21/2023 – Emailed & mailed letter addressing missing information 

• 07/23/2023 – Response from Hannah addressing missing information 

• 07.28.2023 -  Letter stating Legal Description/Deed Book was received 

• 08.14.2023 – Letter mailed & emailed requesting the need for a DRI 

• 08.15.2023 – Received DRI (SC) 

• 10/25/2023 – Public Hearing Notice Letters mailed out to APO’s 

• 10/25/2023 – Public Hearing notice sent to newspaper to be ran on Monday, Oct. 30, 2023 

• 10/26/2023 – Public hearing signs posted on property.  



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  NOVEMBER 13, 2023 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 3:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 11/15/2023 3:55 PM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman Jason Stewart called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Register led the Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - SECRETARY 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Lance Moore Planning Commissioner Present  

Omar Senati-Martinez Planning Commissioner Present  

Abby Brown Planning Commissioner Absent  

Jason Stewart Chairman Present  

Christopher Gray Planning Commissioner Absent  

Nishant Randerwala Planning Commissioner Present  

Charlene Middleton Planning Commissioner Present  

Sean Register Planning Commissioner Present  

Melanie Ellis Building Official Present  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Table item 6.B. by applicant request.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sean Register, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Lance Moore, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Moore, Senati-Martinez, Randerwala, Middleton, Register 

ABSENT: Brown, Gray 

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Sep 11, 2023 6:30 PM 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Omar Senati-Martinez, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Nishant Randerwala, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Moore, Senati-Martinez, Randerwala, Middleton, Register 

ABSENT: Brown, Gray 

6. ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS (REZONING) 



Minutes Planning Commission November 13, 2023 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 11/15/2023 3:55 PM Page 2   

A. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Steven & Janet Hester for PIN # 70978 
05016 (440 Meinhard Rd) to Rezone from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to C-2 

(Community Business) Zoning District 

Hannah Hester was present on behalf of the applicant. Ms. Hester gave a overview of the 

project.  
 
Public Hearing: There were no public comments. 
 
After the public hearing was closed, Mr. Register made the statement that usually when 
you are looking at something like this there is a reason why or something in motion so 
there is a need for it to be done, like a client or project, and if he heard that he would 

give it more consideration. Chief Moore stated he thinks that we could use a little more 
information to be able to make a decision. Ms. Middleton agreed that more information is 
needed. Commissioner Randerwala agreed that more information is needed. Mr. Stewart 
asked Ms. Hester if there was a letter of intent from someone to be placed on the 
property. Ms. Hester stated there is not but they are in pursuit of those. Mr. Stewart 
asked if there had been any traffic analysis. Ms. Hester responded that on the site plan 

there is a proposed road that connects from Meinhard to the New Park road.   After 
several minutes of discussion, Commissioner Senati-Martinez made a motion to 
recommend to deny the application to City Council. Commissioner Middleton seconded the 
motion to recommend denial. The vote to recommend to deny the application to City 
Council was unanimous.   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Omar Senati-Martinez, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Charlene Middleton, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Moore, Senati-Martinez, Randerwala, Middleton, Register 

ABSENT: Brown, Gray 

B. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Hannah Hester for PIN #’s 7-0977-01-
002A, 004, 008, 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016 / 7-0977A-01-001, 002, 003, 004, 

005 / 7-0979-01-011, 015, 014  (110 & 134 Ferguson Rd., 240, 228, 230, 220, 216, 212, 
208, 314, 306, 257, 269, 239 Monteith Rd., Body of Christ Church & Ministries Properties, 

Jessie Mae Beckett(Washington) Property & Jonathan Williams Property on Monteith Rd.) 
to Rezone from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to I-1 (Industrial) Zoning District 

RESULT: DELAYED [UNANIMOUS] Next: 12/11/2023 3:30 PM 

MOVER: Sean Register, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Lance Moore, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Moore, Senati-Martinez, Randerwala, Middleton, Register 

ABSENT: Brown, Gray 

7. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS (ORDINANCES) 

8. SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

A. Special Use Permit Application submitted by TR Long Engineering, P.C., on behalf of 
Clifton Landfill Inc, for PIN # 7-0913-01-010 (Clifton Blvd.) for outside storage for the 
5.01 acres site in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning District 

The applicant Trent Long, TR Long Engineering, P.C., was present and gave a overview of 
the project.  

 
Public Hearing - there were no public comments.  
 



Minutes Planning Commission November 13, 2023 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 11/15/2023 3:55 PM Page 3   

Commissioner Register made a motion to recommend approval to City Council.  
Commissioner Senati-Martinez seconded the motion to recommend approval to City 

Council. The vote was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sean Register, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Omar Senati-Martinez, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Moore, Senati-Martinez, Randerwala, Middleton, Register 

ABSENT: Brown, Gray 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Clifton Landfill Inc., for PIN # 70913 01010 
(Clifton Blvd) for a General Development Site Plan to allow a outdoor storage area in a I-
1 (Industrial) Zoning district. 

Trent Long, TR Long Engineering, P.C., was present on behalf of the applicant and gave a 
overview of the project.  

 
Public Hearing - there were no public comments.  
 
Commissioner Senati-Martinez made a motion to recommend approval to City Council.  
Commissioner Moore seconded the motion to recommend approval to City Council. The 

vote was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Omar Senati-Martinez, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Lance Moore, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Moore, Senati-Martinez, Randerwala, Middleton, Register 

ABSENT: Brown, Gray 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

A. Adjournment 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Omar Senati-Martinez, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Nishant Randerwala, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Moore, Senati-Martinez, Randerwala, Middleton, Register 

ABSENT: Brown, Gray 

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2023. 
 
 



Minutes Planning Commission November 13, 2023 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 11/15/2023 3:55 PM Page 4   

 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary 



Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
Department: Development Services 

Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

Department Head: Melanie Ellis 

City Council 
7224 GA Highway 21 

Port Wentworth, GA  31407 

Submitted

AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2902) DOC ID: 2902 

Updated: 11/16/2023 9:21 AM by Melanie Ellis Page 1 

Special Use Permit Application submitted by TR Long 
Engineering, P.C., on behalf of Clifton Landfill Inc, for PIN # 7-

0913-01-010 (Clifton Blvd.) for outside storage for the 5.01 
acres site in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning District 

Issue/Item: Special Use Permit Application submitted by TR Long Engineering, P.C., on 

behalf of Clifton Landfill Inc, for PIN # 7-0913-01-010 (Clifton Blvd.) for outside storage for 

the 5.01 acres site in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning District 

Background: Existing land use is truck parking and closed landfill.  

Facts and Findings: Special use permit for outside storage for the 5.01 acre site. 

Funding: N/A 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on November 13, 

2023 at 3:30 PM. / UPDATE: The Planning Commission voted unanimously to 

recommend approval of the application.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Application (PDF) 

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(TR Long) (PDF)

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(Graves) (PDF)

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Property Plat (PDF) 

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Legal Description (PDF) 

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Concept (PDF) 

• ZBOA Clifton Blvd-Setback Variance 2023-APO (PDF)

















CLIFTON BOULEVARD

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

5.10 ACRES AND BEING CALLED TRACT l ALSO FORMERLY

BEING A PART OF LANDS OF CLIFTON LANDFILL INC. TOCATED IN 8TH G.M. DISTRICI,

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH, CHATHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA. THIS PARCEL IS FURTHER DESCRIBED IN

PLAT BY SHAWN BEAN, PLS 333], AND RECORDED IN CHATHAM COUNTY IN PLAT BOOK 53 PAGE 682



A

A

SHEET NUMBER:

REVISIONS:

SHEET NAME:

N

EW

S

T
A

X
 P

A
R

C
E

L
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:  

7
0
9
1
3
 0

1
0
1
0
  

  
 P

O
R

T
 W

E
N

T
W

O
R

T
H

, C
H

A
T

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, G

E
O

R
G

IA

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10

T R
LO

N
G

EN
G
IN
EE

R
IN
G
,P
.C
.

w
w

w
.tr

lo
ng

en
g.

co
m

H
IN

ES
VI

LL
E:

11
4 

N
or

th
 C

om
m

er
ce

 S
tr

ee
t

H
in

es
vi

lle
, G

eo
rg

ia
 3

13
13

(9
12

) 3
68

-5
66

4
PO

O
LE

R:
10

00
 T

ow
ne

 C
en

te
r 

Bl
vd

Su
ite

 3
04

Po
ol

er
, G

eo
rg

ia
 3

13
22

(9
12

) 3
35

-1
04

6

C3.1

STAKING PLAN

INITIAL DATE: 8/18/2023
DRAWN BY: CS
CHECKED BY: TRL
PROJECT #: 2022-194

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 S

IT
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
F

O
R

C
L

IF
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

·

·

·

·

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SAPP CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LLC PARCEL # 70913 01008 D.B. 348A PG. 655 P.B. 40P PG. 98 P.B. 30S PG. 52A & 52B

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F GULFSTREAM PARK PLACE, LLC PARCEL # 70913 01011 D.B. 2838 PG. 792 P.B. 15S PG. 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFRIGERATOR TRAILER CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 8' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDFILL MOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDFILL MOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRAVEL PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F GULFSTREAM PARK PLACE, LLC PARCEL # 70913 01011 D.B. 2838 PG. 792 P.B. 15S PG. 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS EXISTING  GRAVEL PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GRAVEL ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE HANDICAP SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH BARB WIRE (TO MATCH EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH BARB WIRE (TO MATCH EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ROLL GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW  GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE BUILDING-BUILDING SHALL BE ELEVATED WITH CRAW SPACE BELOW.  NO ENCLOSURES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE ENTRANCEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 25' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIFTON BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' PRIVATE VEHICULAR ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT PER P.B. 15P PG. 53

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFRIGERATOR TRAILER PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GULFSTREAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE / P.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' DOLLY PAD SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-282-7411

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA811.COM DIAL 811

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF T. R. LONG ENGINEERING, P.C. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED , EITHER IN PART OR WHOLLY, IN ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF T. R. LONG ENGINEERING, P.C. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS CONTAINED WITHIN THIS SET OF DOCUMENTS AND SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO T. R. LONG ENGINEERING, P.C. FOR IMMEDIATE RESOLUTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GSWCC# 0000002134

AutoCAD SHX Text
O:\ACTIVE PROJECTS\2023-194 S - PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT FOR CLIFTON BLVD\900-DRAWINGS\DWG\2023-194.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND GENERAL NOTES: PROJECT NAME/ADDRESS: PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT  PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT           FOR CLIFTON ROAD FOR CLIFTON ROAD  CLIFTON ROAD CLIFTON ROAD OWNER:  CLIFTON LANDFILL CLIFTON LANDFILL P.O. BOX 7003 SAVANNAH, GEORGIA 31418    (912) 964-3181  DEVELOPER: GINA MINCEY GINA MINCEY (912) 964-3181     GCMINC@AOL.COM     BUILDING PROPERTIES / SITE DATA:  ZONING:      M - MANUFACTURING M - MANUFACTURING FLOOD ZONE:    "X" "X" SITE ACREAGE:    5.1 AC  5.1 AC   AC  CONSTRUCTION TYPE:  RETAIL BUILDING RETAIL BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:    800  800  PARKING REQUIRED:   1 SPACE PER 200 SQ/FT  1 SPACE PER 200 SQ/FT  (800/200) =4 SPACES  PARKING PROVIDED:   MORE THAN 4 SPACES MORE THAN 4 SPACES HANDICAP PARKING REQUIRED:  TOTAL PARKING IN LOT (26-50) = 1 HANDICAP SPACES HANDICAP PARKING PROVIDED: 1 SPACES  1 SPACES  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A



Owner Mailing Address City State Zip

SAVANNAH REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL LANDFILL IN PO BOX 29246 PHOENIX AZ 85038

34 GULFSTREAM PROPERTY, LLC 2617 BISSONNET STREET SUITE 489 HOUSTON TX 77005

GULFSTREAM PARK PLACE, LLC 528 EAST 45TH STREET SAVANNAH GA 31405

AC SAVANNAH PROPERTY I LLC 2617 BISSONNET STREET, SUITE 489 HOUSTON TX 77005

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 241 RALPH MCGILL BLVD NE TAX DEPT.  BIN 10120 ATLANTA GA 30308

CLIFTON LANDFILL INC PO BOX 7003 SAVANNAH GA 31418

TR LONG ENGINEERING 114 NORTH COMMERCE STREET HINESVILLE GA 31313



Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
Department: Development Services 

Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

Department Head: Melanie Ellis 

City Council 
7224 GA Highway 21 

Port Wentworth, GA  31407 

Submitted 

AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2903) DOC ID: 2903 

Updated: 11/16/2023 9:27 AM by Melanie Ellis Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Clifton Landfill 
Inc., for PIN # 70913 01010 (Clifton Blvd) for a General 

Development Site Plan to allow a outdoor storage area in a I-
1 (Industrial) Zoning district. 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Clifton Landfill Inc., for PIN # 

70913 01010 (Clifton Blvd) for a General Development Site Plan to allow a outdoor storage 

area in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning district.  

Background: The subject property's existing use is truck parking and a closed landfill. 

Facts and Findings: The applicant is proposing a gravel lot for chassis container 

parking/storage. The development will consist of approximately 75 spaces, and an office 

trailer. The project will be accessed from Clifton Blvd.  The City of Port Wentworth Zoning 

Board of Appeals voted unanimously to approve a variance application, which included 0 

side setback for outside storage and a 25 foot setback from Clifton Blvd and a variance from 

the landscape and buffer requirements due to GA EPD rules for development on a former 

landfill site.  

Funding: N/A 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on November 13, 

2023 at 3:30 PM. / UPDATE: The Planning Commission voted unanimously to 

recommend approval of the application.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Application (PDF) 

• Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Concept Plan (PDF)

• Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Turn Lane (PDF) 

• Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan 2023-Timeline (PDF) 







A

A

SHEET NUMBER:

REVISIONS:

SHEET NAME:

N

EW

S

T
A

X
 P

A
R

C
E

L
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:  

7
0
9
1
3
 0

1
0
1
0
  

  
 P

O
R

T
 W

E
N

T
W

O
R

T
H

, C
H

A
T

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, G

E
O

R
G

IA

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10

T R
LO

N
G

EN
G
IN
EE

R
IN
G
,P
.C
.

w
w

w
.tr

lo
ng

en
g.

co
m

H
IN

ES
VI

LL
E:

11
4 

N
or

th
 C

om
m

er
ce

 S
tr

ee
t

H
in

es
vi

lle
, G

eo
rg

ia
 3

13
13

(9
12

) 3
68

-5
66

4
PO

O
LE

R:
10

00
 T

ow
ne

 C
en

te
r 

Bl
vd

Su
ite

 3
04

Po
ol

er
, G

eo
rg

ia
 3

13
22

(9
12

) 3
35

-1
04

6

C3.1

STAKING PLAN

INITIAL DATE: 8/18/2023
DRAWN BY: CS
CHECKED BY: TRL
PROJECT #: 2022-194

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 S

IT
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
F

O
R

C
L

IF
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

·

·

·

·

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SAPP CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LLC PARCEL # 70913 01008 D.B. 348A PG. 655 P.B. 40P PG. 98 P.B. 30S PG. 52A & 52B

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F GULFSTREAM PARK PLACE, LLC PARCEL # 70913 01011 D.B. 2838 PG. 792 P.B. 15S PG. 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFRIGERATOR TRAILER CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 8' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDFILL MOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDFILL MOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRAVEL PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F GULFSTREAM PARK PLACE, LLC PARCEL # 70913 01011 D.B. 2838 PG. 792 P.B. 15S PG. 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS EXISTING  GRAVEL PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GRAVEL ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE HANDICAP SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH BARB WIRE (TO MATCH EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH BARB WIRE (TO MATCH EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ROLL GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW  GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE BUILDING-BUILDING SHALL BE ELEVATED WITH CRAW SPACE BELOW.  NO ENCLOSURES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE ENTRANCEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 25' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIFTON BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' PRIVATE VEHICULAR ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT PER P.B. 15P PG. 53

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFRIGERATOR TRAILER PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GULFSTREAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE / P.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' DOLLY PAD SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-282-7411

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA811.COM DIAL 811

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 30 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF T. R. LONG ENGINEERING, P.C. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED , EITHER IN PART OR WHOLLY, IN ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF T. R. LONG ENGINEERING, P.C. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS CONTAINED WITHIN THIS SET OF DOCUMENTS AND SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO T. R. LONG ENGINEERING, P.C. FOR IMMEDIATE RESOLUTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GSWCC# 0000002134

AutoCAD SHX Text
O:\ACTIVE PROJECTS\2023-194 S - PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT FOR CLIFTON BLVD\900-DRAWINGS\DWG\2023-194.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND GENERAL NOTES: PROJECT NAME/ADDRESS: PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT  PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT           FOR CLIFTON ROAD FOR CLIFTON ROAD  CLIFTON ROAD CLIFTON ROAD OWNER:  CLIFTON LANDFILL CLIFTON LANDFILL P.O. BOX 7003 SAVANNAH, GEORGIA 31418    (912) 964-3181  DEVELOPER: GINA MINCEY GINA MINCEY (912) 964-3181     GCMINC@AOL.COM     BUILDING PROPERTIES / SITE DATA:  ZONING:      M - MANUFACTURING M - MANUFACTURING FLOOD ZONE:    "X" "X" SITE ACREAGE:    5.1 AC  5.1 AC   AC  CONSTRUCTION TYPE:  RETAIL BUILDING RETAIL BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:    800  800  PARKING REQUIRED:   1 SPACE PER 200 SQ/FT  1 SPACE PER 200 SQ/FT  (800/200) =4 SPACES  PARKING PROVIDED:   MORE THAN 4 SPACES MORE THAN 4 SPACES HANDICAP PARKING REQUIRED:  TOTAL PARKING IN LOT (26-50) = 1 HANDICAP SPACES HANDICAP PARKING PROVIDED: 1 SPACES  1 SPACES  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A



 
 
 

114 North Commerce Street 
Hinesville, Georgia 31313 

(912) 368-5664 Office 
(912) 368-7206 Fax 

 

 
 
 

1000 Towne Center Blvd. 
Suite 304 

Pooler, Georgia 31322 
(912) 335-1046 

 
September 28, 2023 
 

Turn Lane Analysis 
Port Wentworth, Georgia 

Clifton Boulevard Development 
 
A turn lane analysis has been requested for the Clifton Boulevard Development west of Clifton 
Boulevard and south of Gulfstream Road in Port Wentworth, Georgia. T. R. Long Engineering, 
P.C. has performed the turn lane analysis based on the number of trips projected for the site 
provided by the client, Adana Capital, LLC.  
 
Clifton Boulevard is a north-south, two-lane roadway that has a functional classification of local 
road. The roadway does not have a posted speed limit. Per Georgia Code 40-6-181, the speed 
limit is 30 mph within city limits. There is not a Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) 
count station on this roadway. 
 
Gulfstream Road is an east-west, two-lane roadway that has a functional classification of major 
collector. The posted speed limit is 35 mph. The 2021 annual average daily traffic (AADT) on 
Gulfstream Road, between Airways Avenue and Patrick S Graham Drive, from GDOT count 
station 051-8195 is 10,700 with heavy truck traffic at 5%. 
 
Clifton Road at its intersection with Gulfstream Road is stop controlled while Gulfstream Road is 
free flowing. At the intersection, Clifton Road has one lane for its northbound approach. 
Gulfstream Road has two lanes for both the eastbound and westbound approaches.  
 
The site will be used as storage for containers to/from Georgia Ports Port of Savannah. Trips 
generated by the development were provided by Adana Capital, LLC. The average daily trucks 
for the site is 20 trucks which equals 40 daily trips. These trucks will enter and exit the site during 
the same hours of operation as Georgia Ports Port of Savannah, 7 am to 5 pm. In the 10 hours 
of operation, it is assumed that there will be 4 trips per hour. Trip generation is shown in Table 1. 
 

TABLE 1: TRIP GENERATION 

LAND USE DAILY 
AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR 

ENTER EXIT ENTER EXIT 

Storage for Containers 
20 trucks daily 

40 2 2 2 2 

 
The proposed driveway for the site is located approximately 500 feet south of Gulfstream Road 
on Clifton Boulevard. The general distribution assumption is 100% to/from the east on Gulfstream 
Road (traveling to/from SR 21/Augusta Road). Site plan is attached. 
 
The GDOT Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control Manual is utilized for the lane turn 
lane analysis on Gulfstream Road and the right turn lane analysis on Clifton Boulevard. The 
minimum left turn lane requirements for a 4-lane roadway with ADT greater than or equal to 
10,000 at 35-mph or less are 300 left turning vehicles a day. The minimum right turn lane 



 

 

requirements for a 2-lane roadway with ADT less than 6,000 at 35-mph or less are 200 right 
turning vehicles a day.  
 
From the trip generation, there are 40 trips entering and exiting the roadway daily. Of these trips, 
20 trips are entering, and 20 trips are exiting the roadway. Using the distribution above, it is 
projected that are 1,400 right turning vehicles a day. Based on these trips, the left turn lane 
minimum requirements on Gulfstream Road are not met, and the right turn lane minimum 
requirements on Clifton Boulevard are not met. It is not recommended to install turn lanes based 
on the site project trips. 
 
T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. appreciates the opportunity to provide this memorandum. Should 
you have any questions, comments or need additional information please contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Danielle P. Easterling, P.E. 
Transportation Engineer 
 
 
 





230353 Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023 

1 
 11/1/2023 2:08 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 230353 

Project Name: Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023 

Applicant: TR Long 

Owner: Clifton Landfill Inc – Gina Mincey (President) 

Planning Commission Date: 

Council Date:  

 

• 10/13/2023 – Application received (SC) 

 


	ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Policy Paper packet
	2904 : ZMA 70978 05016 440 Meinhard Rd NOV 2023 1st Reading
	ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Application
	ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Plat Map & Basic Concept Plan
	Meinhard - Letter of Invite to Neighborhood Rezoning Meeting
	Meinhard Neighborhood Meeting Report, Oct 2
	ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Timeline


	Planning Commission Agenda Minutes November 13, 2023 DRAFT
	Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Policy paper packet
	2902 : S.U.P. 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Application
	Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(TR Long)
	Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(Graves)
	Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Property Plat
	Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Legal Description
	Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Concept
	ZBOA Clifton Blvd-Setback Variance 2023-APO


	Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Policy paper packet
	2903 : Site Plan Application (General) 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Application
	Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Concept Plan
	Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Turn Lane
	Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan 2023-Timeline



